

Repstor custodian™

User Guide

Document Version 1.5 For custodian version 1.36 March 2016

# Contents

Welcome to Repstor Custodian	2
Repstor Custodian software components	4
The Repstor custodian APP	5
Repstor affinity - Access to case content in Outlook	6
Repstor assist - Assisted Filing	6
Getting Started - Repstor custodian general user concepts	8
"Case" selection – deciding which "Cases" are displayed in Outlook	8
Creating New "cases"	. 13
Using Repstor affinity and Repstor assist to access and file Repstor custodian "case" content	. 17
Concept 1 - It works just like Microsoft Outlook	. 17
Concept 2 – It's not just about email	. 18
Concept 3 – Work on or Offline	. 18
Concept 4 – Know what has changed	. 19
Concept 5 – Quickly navigating large folder structures for finding and filing	. 19
Concept 6 – Adding new content to Repstor affinity folders	. 23

## Welcome to Repstor Custodian

If you're reading this it's likely that you have just installed Repstor custodian, or it has been installed for you by your I.T. department. This document gives guidance for new users to start using the product. If required more comprehensive documentation is available here: <u>Repstor Custodian</u> <u>Installation and Configuration Guide.</u>

Repstor custodian is a case management application that allows users to effectively manage case documents providing on and offline, uninterrupted access to Case and other Content through the familiar Microsoft Outlook<sup>®</sup> mail client. It allows you to access content held in case files on SharePoint systems and content from File Shares or other supported repository while on and offline.

You can add, view, edit according to any permissions you have relating to the source of the content.

There is document management capability, taking advantage of versioning, property management and other functionality while maintaining the familiar Outlook way of working.

Please note that in this document we use "Case" or "Cases" as a general term – in your deployment this may be "Matter"/"Matters", "Engagement"/"Engagements" or other case type – this naming is configured by the system administrator.

We use "Clients" to denote the aggregation of "Cases" – so you may for instance configure a different use for this aggregation – e.g. Team/Customer/Site or other way to group cases to meet your needs.

# Repstor Custodian software components

Custodian is made up of a number of separate but integrated components - Users interact with the components of Repstor custodian as follows:

## Repstor custodian APP – Used for configuration of custodian

- Used by authorized users for creating new "cases"
- Used for selecting which "cases" should be displayed within Outlook
- Used by administrators to configure the system (Installation and configuration are dealt with in the Repstor custodian installation and configuration guide)
- Accessible from the appropriate SharePoint site or directly via a URL.

# Repstor custodian APP part – provides access to case selection and creation within SharePoint pages/sites

• The custodian APP part can be added to sites on SharePoint and will show the current users "case" configuration (i.e. which cases have been selected to be available in Outlook) and allows users to search across the cases to which they have access.

# Repstor affinity Client – provides access to "case" content from the Outlook client – also provides access to create "cases"

- Adds functionality to the Outlook Client to enable custodian "Case" management
- Users can file and retrieve documents email and other content relating to a "Case"
- Users can also access non "Case content" that is held on SharePoint and other systems'

Repstor assist client – provides assisted filing so that users can quickly and easily file "case" content to the system from within Outlook and the Microsoft office applications.

- Users are presented with suggested locations for filing email and other content based on what is being filed and the existing filed content
- Rules are automatically generated and kept up to date
- Users always have the final say on where the items are filed

# The Repstor custodian APP

# "Case" template and other configuration, "Case" creation and "Case" selection

The Repstor Custodian APP is the part of the product that allows administrators to define different "case" templates and is also used to create new "cases" based on those templates. It also defines how "cases" are grouped and named.

The template definitions can include specific libraries, folder structures, properties, content types pre-existing documents and define which template documents are available creating new documents.

Access to the APP is via links on the APP site which will be configured by the user that installs the software. This is a standard SharePoint site that can be tailored to meet specific requirements, and will have a link to the custodian APP and there are also APP parts that can be added to the site to give access to "cases".

Use of the Repstor custodian APP for defining templates and configuring the system is covered in the Repstor custodian installation and configuration guide.

The creation of "cases" can be initiated either directly from the APP or from the Outlook client using the Create "case" button which is normally displayed in the Repstor affinity ribbon.



Home?SPHostUrl=https%3A%2F%2Frepstor.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2Fdemo2013%2Fclients

# Repstor affinity - Access to case content in Outlook

Repstor affinity provides access to "cases" that have been creating using the custodian APP (it also provides access to other content such as SharePoint libraries/folders/lists, Shared Drives, OneDrive Consumer, OneDrive for Business and other content sources such as HP Worksite systems and HP Trim / RM systems (for a full list please contact Repstor from the enquiry form <u>here</u> or contact your service provider if you have purchased Repstor through a Repstor partner.



Figure 2 - Documents and email in Case folders(can also be mixed)

More information on the configuration and use of Repstor affinity can be found in the Repstor affinity documentation.

## Repstor assist - Assisted Filing

Repstor assist provides suggested locations when filing email and other case related content. This allows users to quickly identify the correct filing location for email or documents by providing quick search for folder locations and suggested filing locations as well as displaying recent locations.

The assist Quickfile feature can be invoked both from the menu or when viewing or editing an office document

On clicking on the "Quickfile" button in the menu, or "Quickfile attachments" when viewing an email or the "Save as New Repstor affinity document" button when in the office applications, the Quickfile dialogue is opened and any suggested locations and recent locations presented, the user can then choose one of these locations to file the item to, or may enter an alternative location by typing parts of the folder path.

Gaboet	Quick File - Repstor assist	
earch for Folder:		Move
Folder Suggestions -NR (100%) correspondence (48%) commercais (39%)	Folder Path \/repstor affinity/administration\core docs\sales - all documents\prospects\ \/repstor affinity\opps\natural ies\natu0000 - office365 email ( \/repstor affinity\opps\shareone\shar0023 - general partnership\commercals	
Recent Locations Documentation Repstor WIP Orders	\/repstor affinity/administration\core docs\/releases\custodian\1.1\documen \/repstor affinity/administration\/repstor wip \/repstor affinity/administration\/board docs\/billing\orders	
orders	An davier, ammed formanion anon form a coch formal for nerv	

Figure 3 - Repstor assist suggested and recent filing locations

More information on the configuration and use of Repstor assist can be found in the Repstor assist documentation.

# **Getting Started - Repstor custodian general user concepts**

# "Case" selection – deciding which "Cases" are displayed in Outlook

Repstor custodian allows users to select which cases should be displayed in Outlook. Adding and removing cases is straightforward and this can be accessed either through the SharePoint user interface or via the Outlook menus opening the custodian APP as follows:

NB. Removing "cases" from Outlook does not delete any content from the server, and "cases" can easily be reinstated in Outlook.

## Selecting cases from Outlook

Within Outlook "Cases" are displayed in a structure defined by the administrator, this can vary from system to system depending on the nature of the "cases" being managed

<ul> <li>Repstor affinity</li> </ul>	
▲ Clients	"Client" Name
Awesome Computers	
AWES00012 - Exchange migration to Office 365	
Backup	
Communication 12	
Documents	
Engagement Documents 13	"Case" ID (Typical)
Project Management 2	
Transfers	
AWES00013 - SparePoint server configuration	
Backup	
Communication 12	
Completed Contracts 2	
Engagement Documents 13	
Project Management 1	
Transfers	"Case" Name
DAWES00017 Evaluation of File Shares	
AWESAWES0003 - Strategic Supplier Selection	L
Blue Yonder Airlines	
Contoso	

Figure 4 – Example "Case" folder structures in Outlook

In order to choose which "Cases" should be displayed, the user can access and use the APP as described in the previous section or can do the same thing by clicking on My "Cases" in the outlook ribbon (Figure 5). This will open the custodian APP with the same UI as shown in Figure 7 and the user can then select which cases should be displayed in Outlook. The custodian APP is described in more detail in the next section.

Note: The button names as shown in Figure 5 may be customized.



Figure 5 - Create "Case" and My "Cases" 'Buttons

From there users can remove "cases" from Outlook by clicking on the symbol which appears on hovering over a specific "Case", and may add cases by clicking on the All "Cases" tab and clicking on the pushpin symbol which is present on all "Cases" not currently included in the Outlook view.

The relevant cases can be found using the search facility which will filter the "cases" as characters are typed taking account of the name of the "Client" or the name of the "Case". Users can restrict the search to a particular client by clicking on the name of the "client" and then running the search.

An advanced search option is also available which allows users to find "cases" etc. using any of the available metadata elements (including user defined fields).

As the user selects or deselects "Cases" the Outlook environment will add or remove the "Cases" from the folder hierarchy.

## **Custodian APP**

The custodian APP can normally be opened from the main SharePoint site where it is installed. The Custodian web interface is used by administrators to configure the system and is also used by standard users to decide which "cases" are available from the Outlook UI and to create new "cases" if this is a manual process and they have the appropriate permissions.

Access to the custodian APP web user interface is typically via a link on the home section of appropriate SharePoint site menu but may be configured differently by your IT department.

Users may select which "cases" they want to be available in the Outlook client from either the APP or the APP part shown below.

## Custodian APP part

If you or your administrator has added the custodian web part to a site in SharePoint you can access your "cases" directly from that web site as shown below.



Figure 6 - SharePoint Site with access to custodian and the App part deployed

## My "Cases" Tab

This tab shows the "cases" that will be visible in Outlook for the user

Engagements			
CREATE MY ENGAGEMEN	NTS ALL ENGAGEMENTS		Search
Contoso Server Upgrades	Litware Desktop refresh	Litware IM Consultancy	Exchange migration to Offi
Contoso	Litware Inc	Litware Inc	Awesome Computers
08/10/2014	08/10/2014	08/10/2014	08/10/2014
SharePoint server configur	Enron Insolvency	Migration to Office 365	Strategy Consultancy
Awesome Computers	Enron Creditors Recovery Corp	Utware Inc	Litware Inc
08/10/2014	05/10/2014	08/10/2014	08/10/2014
Evaluation of File Shares	Competition probe	Contoso technical refresh	Litware Technology Refresh
Average Computers	Blue Yonder Arlines	Contoso	Litware Inc
09/10/2014	18/09/2014	08/10/2014	18/09/2014
Supply of new field compu	New project at hymans	Supply of new product int	New awesome computer e
Avvisome Computers	Avecome Computers	Awesome Computers	Awesome Computers
18/09/2014	18/11/2014	08/12/2014	16/12/2014
- Previous	1.5	16 of 16	Next -

Figure 7 - My "Cases" in the custodian APP part

Actions available:

#### Click on:

Contoso Server Upgrades Contoso The name of the case to open the individual 08/10/2014 10 case Contoso Server Upgrades The name of the "Client" to show all cases Contoso 08/10/201 1 related to that client 12 The edit symbol to update the case Contoso Server Upgrades Contoso (e.g. to add or remove interested parties) 08/10/2014 The document symbol to display/manage Contoso Server Upgrades what "Document Templates" are Contoso 08/10/2014 assigned to the case

"Cases" may be removed by clicking on the 🛪 symbol which appears when hovering over the "case"

Enron Insolvency Enron Creditors Recovery Corp	- Migration to Office 365 Litware Inc
08/10/2014	emove from My Engagements

#### All "Cases" Tab

This tab shows all of the available "cases" that the current logged in user has access to.



Figure 9 - Pin a case (adds case to My Cases and pushes to user's Outlook)

Users can search for specific "Cases" or "Clients" by simply typing in the search box, and the results are filtered as the user types the characters.

If the user makes any changes these are then reflected in Outlook with any "cases" that have been deselected being removed from Outlook and those that have been selected being added to the outlook folder structure.

# Creating New "cases"

If "Cases" are to be created manually, users who are authorized to create new "Cases" can do this either from the custodian APP or from the Outlook menu Create "Case" button which will open the create "Case" page within the custodian APP.

New "cases" can be created based on the "case" templates configured by the administrator. "Case" Templates may have additional properties associated with each "case" which are set in the properties tab as described below. Additional properties may be added prior to the "case" being generated.

Templates may also include "documents" which are deployed as document templates available when working with the cases. Additional "documents" may be added from those configured on the system prior to the "case" being generated.

CREATE	MY ENG	Search				
Details	ils Properties Documents					
	Client	Awesome Computers				
	Title	Super Laptop Supply X				
Te	emplate	Client Engagement Template				
Interested	Parties	These people will be given automatic access to this matter through Repstor affinit	ty.			
Create Er	ngagemen	t				



## New "Case" DETAILS

Basic case details When Creating a "Case" the user must set a number of dropdown entries and complete a case name, and depending on the template chosen there may be additional properties to be completed.

"Client":	Choose from the dropdown or create a new "client" if the "client" required is not in the list. Creating a new client may depending on configuration create a "Client" site that can be used to store general information about the "Client".
Title:	This is a descriptive name for the specific "case", for example in a legal department scenario this might be "ACME Acquisition" or "ACME Contract renewal"

Template:	This is the template that will be used to create the "case" folders and other relevant "case" settings, for example in a legal setting this might be
	"Contract renewal" or "Corporate Acquisition" or similar. This will also define what properties and "documents" that are available for a "case"
Interested Parties:	This contains a list of users or groups of users that will be given access to the case when it is created and will have the case surfaced in their Outlook client.

#### New "Case" Properties

When Creating a "Case" once a template has been chosen, clicking on the *Properties* tab will display any properties defined in the template and allow these to be completed.

Hi Repstor custodian

Search b	y Matter Title	, Matter Code, or Client Code
CREATE		RS ALL MATTERS
Details	Properties	Documents
		Value filled automatically
Matter ( Client C (A) Resp Practice	ode onsible Partner	Value filled automatically

Figure 11 - Properties Tab when creating a new "Case"

To set the properties to a new value, click on the symbol on any of the properties where the value is not system generated – this will open a property window for completion. Once complete click on "Save" as shown below in Figure 13.

NB : If any of the properties are mandatory then the Create "Case" button will not be enabled until the mandatory properties are completed (these are identified by clicking on properties and any mandatory properties are denoted with a Hazard triangle as shown below.

х	🔔 Case Description	🧖 No value set		
	Cascade to Content	Apply to Views	Enable for Reporting	
	Figure 12 M	<u> </u>	ing daga starting	
	Figure 12 - Mi	andatory properti	es aenotation	

Super Lapt	op Suppry 6917	erta - Custodia	in Propertie	es - Ptoperties - Inte 💷 🎫
D https:///with		toro dame 2013/cd	urits/Matheu/	Napor Nationaprise Raddaupply National Terror
1001				
See Core	Rese Bacory	Dente Anon Iten Acture	Spetting Spetting	
Start Date	11/3/2014	6	×	
	004 446 PM by Re 1107016 448 PM			Salve Concel

Figure 13 - Completing Properties

## New "Case""Documents"

Note that the terminology may be customized so "Documents" may be set to display an alternative such as Templates or precedents depending on the scenario.

CREATE	MY ENG	AGEMENTS	ALL ENGAGEMENTS		Search	][
Oetails	Properties	Documents				
		Documents	Select the documents you wish to	o add to this project.		
			Annual Contract	Remove		
			Mutual NDA	Remove		
			Quarterly Contract	Remove		
			Note Entry	Remove		
			Configuration Template	Remove		
			Add Document Choose.		Adul	

"Documents" are document templates that can be accessed by users to create new documents based on those documents/templates.

A new document based on these templates is generated when the user clicks on the new "Document" button in the Repstor affinity ribbon in Outlook and provides a name for the new document.

When clicking on the "Documents" tab the list displayed will be the "Documents" that are associated with the "Case" template, and any other available templates can be added by choosing them from the Add "Document" dropdown.

# Using Repstor affinity and Repstor assist to access and file Repstor custodian "case" content.

When Repstor affinity and assist are used with Repstor custodian users can easily access and file "case" content that is then available to other users with permission to access those "cases".

There are a number of key concepts that are utilized in these products when working with custodian, and these are described below.

# Concept 1 - It works just like Microsoft Outlook

Where possible, affinity works like Outlook, this includes Outlook features/functions such as:

Folders	Views	<b>Display</b>
(Navigation, Favorite folders)	(Grouping/Filtering/Sorting)	(Preview Pane, People Pane)
Emailing Content (Forward/Reply/attach)	Notifications (read/unread)	<b>Ribbons and Menus</b> (Contextual Ribbon menu and right click menus)
<b>Move/Copy</b> (Drag and Drop of items Copy/Paste including multiple item functions/Move)	Search (Find related/hit highlighting/ search scopes/search folders/ property search/has attachment search/date related search)	Folder Creation (if authorized)
<b>Delete</b>	Outlook Rules	Conversation views
(if authorized)	Outlook Rules/Quicksteps	Includes filed items

This means that when you are navigating the affinity folders you can apply all of the above Outlook functions exactly as you would for standard email content and perform actions such as dragging and dropping email or attachments from your inbox to a folder in affinity.

## affinity and email items - keeping it as you like it

When email is moved to an affinity folder, it remains part of your Outlook environment and is still available in conversation views in your inbox, you can also do all of the same actions that you could do when it was in your inbox, i.e. reply, forward, open or copy attachments, drag and drop attachments and so on. If you have the correct permissions and role you may still also be able to delete or drag and drop it to other locations.

## Searching

Searching in Outlook has many facets with which users are familiar, all of which are supported by affinity including:

Scope of search

i.e. which areas you want the search to cover that can be set to this folder, this folder and it's subfolders, current mailbox, all mailboxes or all outlook items.

Special searches	UNREAD/Sent To/has attachments/subject/from
Date based searches	Today/This Week/and other date based searches (uses the last updated date of the items if they are documents or files other than email)
Advanced Find	Search by properties, including custodian/SharePoint properties
Search Folders	You can define new search folders by right clicking on any of the "Search Folder" nodes that are found in the level below inboxes or the Repstor affinity node and define specific criteria and scopes.

## TIP

Search folders are a powerful tool enabling many different ways of working. Once a search has been defined you can take advantage of views to order, filter and group the items that meet the search criteria, for example it can be used to list only those items filed by you in the last week/day/month grouped by day or folder or type.

# Concept 2 – It's not just about email

With Repstor affinity you can manage all of your other "case" content in the Outlook client, including Office Documents, PDF's and much more bringing the <u>best of Outlook</u> such as <u>offline working</u> and the familiar Outlook way of working to case document management.

The Outlook way of working remains intact but we've added all of the key things that you might want to do with documents, such as view in Word/Excel etc, edit, send as a link, send as an attachment, <u>help navigate large folder hierarchies and filing, and</u> much more.

# Concept 3 – Work on or Offline

Repstor affinity in common with Outlook (with cache mode enabled) enables users to work on or offline. This means that users can do everything that they could do if connected to the network while offline (other than creating new cases).

For example users can file email into folders, create new folders for filing and file to them, they can prepare responses to email that they received before going offline, and send and file those items, and when the network is available again the changes they have made are synchronized with the Mail server and filed in the case management system.

With affinity users can file content from email, Office and other sources, and can move or delete documents and/or email within those that have been made available in the affinity folders. They can update properties and essentially do anything that they can do while online. When the network is available again the changes, additions and deletions are synchronized.

So – if you are travelling or for any reason the Case Management /SharePoint system(s) or File Share(s) is/are not available you can carry on working regardless.

# Concept 4 – Know what has changed

Repstor affinity utilizes the read/unread notifications within Outlook to let you know what content has changed since you last viewed/updated it. This in combination with stored searches allows you to keep track across the entire set of content that you use without having to go look for changes.

Note: On first synchronization all items are marked as new, and it is a good idea once all of the content has been added to Outlook that you mark all of this content as read, from then on any item which changes will be highlighted.

To mark all items as read the quickest way is to add a search folder to **Repstor affinity-**>Search Folders by right clicking on the Search Folders node, select "New Search Folder" and add a search folder for unread mail, setting the Search Mail in option to "Repstor affinity". This creates a search folder called "Unread Mail", this can be renamed in the usual manner to "Unread affinity items".

This folder will then contain all of the items that are marked as unread, and these can be marked as read by right clicking on the **"Unread affinity items"** search folder and selecting **"Mark All as Read"**. From this point on only items that have changed or are new will be highlighted, and this search folder is a quick view of new and changed items that can be added (dragged and dropped) to the **"Favorites"** area for easy reference.

# Concept 5 – Quickly navigating large folder structures for finding and filing

When Repstor affinity is used to connect to custodian, there are often large numbers of folders related to the cases, which can make navigation and filing difficult if the only mechanism to do so were to browse the folder hierarchy. To deal with this scenario, affinity adds two key features to Outlook which work both on affinity and on Outlook standard folders.

## Jump to Folder



Figure 14 - Jump to Folder in Repstor assist Ribbon

Located at the right side of the Home Ribbon

Jump to Folder allows users to type in a few letters of the folder path in order to quickly find and open the relevant folder.



Report Londons	Б	Fuller Page	
Contracts Sudgato DH Scientes Taol		Vegate afferty/decolaces projects/point in - enternal projects/pp/community Vegate afferty/period/pointy/parally/points/ Vegate afferty/period/pointy-points/points/ Vegate afferty/parally/points/points/ Vegate afferty/parally/points/points/ Vegate afferty/parally/points/points/ Vegate afferty/parally/points/points/	

Figure 15- Jump to Folder Dialogue

This will include recent locations where you have filed information or accessed using Jump to Folder.

By typing part of a folder path(for example a case reference or client name – in this case "awe" in the "Search for Folder" box, any folders that have a part of their path starting with awe (in this case awesome computer cases) will be shown as below

Search for Folder:	ave	Open
Folder	Folder Path	
Results.		
hadkup completed contract ingagement docum project management backup communication completed contract documents engagement docum project management transfers	ents \/paptor affisihy/sients/awesome computers/awes00013 - sharepoint serv \/paptor affisihy/sients/awesome computers/awes00013 - sharepoint serv \/paptor affisihy/sients/awesome computers/awes00019 - stapping affisihy/sients/awesome computers/awes00019 - stapping af new p \/paptor affisihy/sients/awesome computers/awes00019 - stapping af new p	
Reindex Fold	ets. 295 folders indexed (Last updated 23/12/2014 19:07)	

Figure 16 - Filtering locations

By then adding "shar" the results are further filtered

		Jump To Folder - Repstor assist	_ 🗆 🗖
Search for Folder:	avie shar		Open
Folder	Fok	der Path	
Results backup communication completed contra engagement doc project managem transfors documents	()/re cts ()/re prments ()/re nent ()/re ()/re	pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00013 - sharepoint serv pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00013 - sharepoint serv ptor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00013 - sharepoint serv pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00013 - sharepoint serv pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00013 - sharepoint serv pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00019 - supply of new p pstor affinity/clients/aversome computers/aves00019 - supply of new p	
	Aders	205 folders induced (Last updated 23/12/2014 10:07)	

Figure 17 - Refining filter

and you can if needed continue adding filter terms (minimum 2 characters) until the folder is easily identified, in this case only one folder matches awe shar comm.

	Jump To Folder - Repstor assist	- 🗆 🗙
Search for Folder:	awe shar comm	Open
Folder	Folder Path	
Results communication	\/vepstor affinity\clients\awesome computers\awes00013 - sharepoint serv	
Reindex Fol	ders	

Figure 18 - Filtered to single folder

You can "Jump To" the relevant folder at any time by either, selecting it and clicking on "Open", or simply double clicking on the folder name/path in the list.

Quick File and Quick File Attachments with assist



Figure 19 - Quick File in Repstor assist ribbon

The Quick File function within Repstor assist works in exactly the same way as Jump to Folder – you first select the email or other item or items that you wish to file to a particular folder location, but instead of jumping to the folder chosen in the dialogue, the selected items will be moved to that folder. The Quick File function within Repstor assist will also suggest locations where the document or email should be filed based on its content. Items can then be copied or moved to the selected location. When filing from the Microsoft Office applications a Select button replaces the copy/move button.

	Quick File - Repstor assist	- 🗆 🗙
Search for Folder:		Move
Folder	Folder Path	Сору
Suggestions • Test (35%)	\/vepstor affinity\administration\core docs\contracts\test	Move

Quickfile Attachments will do the same for all of the attachments on all of the selected emails (in this case a copy rather than a move is performed, the original emails are left unchanged).

If you wish to file a subset of the attachments on a particular email you can do by selecting the attachments in the preview and selecting the Quick File attachments option in the right click menu, again the attachments are copied to the selected folder and the original email is unchanged.

# Concept 6 – Adding new content to Repstor affinity folders

Directly using Add Document (add from the desktop)

## Single items

Single items can be added using the Add Document button in Outlook when accessing a Repstor affinity folder. If Content types are configured you may choose any of the allowed types. This will then launch a standard windows explorer window where you can choose a single file. Once the file is chosen then a properties dialogue is displayed where the user can fill out any required properties and if desired change the name of the file.

		0	Op	xen		×.
		€ - + <b>↓</b> • †	his $PC + Windows (C) + demo docs$	Folder 1 v C	Search Folder 1	ρ
Add View		Organize - New fold	er -		11 · 13	
Docum st v Docum Project Docum Contract	r + & - =	Wideos (C) SRecycle Bin Biother Config Mis denso docs Folder 1 Folder 2 (*) Decoments a Press Release 120220 FORMAT TECT		ress	Asaaones, WA 22305 Phone (223) 555- 0190 Pag (223) 135- 0191	
Content Type:	Project Document		¥	Contact	POB	+
Name*	Press Release 12022012		docx		All Files (7.7)	*
Title			]		Open 💌 Cancel	
Contract Approval Document ID Value: Document ID ProjectID* Company Departmental relevanc	e ♥ Admin Sales   HR   Marketsing   Development   Menufacturing		*			
		Figure 20- Ada	ling a single file			

## Adding content from Word, Excel, Powerpoint

From within the application click on the Save as Nrw Repstor affinity document button, which will open the Quickfile dialogue and the item can be added to the required folder.



## Generating a new document from a custodian template

You can generate a new document from a template using the "New "Document"" button in the Repstor affinity ribbon and selecting the required template and providing a name when prompted.

🗋 New Document 🔻 🗒 Edit Document 🤣 Send Link	ų.
Mutual NDA1	
Configuration Template	
Mutual NDA	_
Note	

## From Outlook (Email or other affinity content)

## *Single or Multiple items from Outlook*

Simply select a number of items in the view and use any of the normal Outlook mechanisms to copy or move them to the desired folder location:

## Сору

Right click drag and drop, CTRL-C/CTRL-V or right click copy, then move to the new location and CTRL-V or right click and paste or any similar combination.

#### Move

## Left Click drag and drop

Quick File can also be used to move multiple selected items (Copy or move behavior is defined by the configuration).

Depending on the set-up you may be prompted with a property form. If mandatory properties are present these must be completed (indicated by a \* beside the property name).

## Hierarchies of information from Outlook (from standard mail folders)

Right click on a folder that you want to copy or move and choose copy folder or move folder and follow the normal process to select a target location in Repstor affinity. Large hierarchies may take some time to synchronize back to the SharePoint system

## From the Desktop

## Single or Multiple items from the desktop

Simply select a number of items in the view and use any of the normal file mechanisms to copy them to the desired folder location:

Right click drag and drop, CTRL-C/CTRL-V or right click copy, then move to the new location and CTRL-V or right click and paste or any similar combination.

Depending on the set-up you may be prompted with a property form. If mandatory properties are present these must be completed (indicated by a \* beside the property name). If large numbers of items are added the default is to allow the addition without any property dialogue.

## Importing Hierarchies of information from the desktop

You can add entire hierarchies of files and folders from the desktop by right clicking on the target folder within the Repstor affinity folder hierarchy in Outlook (i.e. the folder where you want the imported content to be located), swelecting Repstoraffinity->Import Folder. This opens a standard Windows explorer window where you can select a folder for import. This will then add all of the contents of the folder and any subfolder structures and files to Repstor affinity for synchronization to SharePoint.

Contraction of the second seco	severanes can system			
Pagetan all hotes				
	6 0 0 L 0 m Q +			
a facerber.	All Unread	mentamentalistic (2) (constitution -	STRAY SCHOOL SCHOOL	र्या भ
Address No. 1941	HIGH DID Heated Industry	Receives - tem int	AND DESCRIPTION OF	
ad attacky (1991)	Distant Ran	10444 07/00,0014 10/00 dt + 1	Document M	lanagement System <g< td=""></g<>
Diverse (SIE)	Import Fooder			DIA+ poster: Are You Being Ind
Ovtool	in the second se	41. 19-1		ords? Could you?
Send Herris (1994)	benet in lighter to report documents from		12 Marcentine	
intere	Salar)			nessage is displayed, click permits value it i help posteril your prevary. Outlinik prever
	Coperiade Index	19 18-1		
A Treputor affinity			Antonibi Matamatikat i	a and taken
- Arms by Driveral Managing #		1	-	
· Alexandration		punt Deer Part I		iouun.
		the state of the state of the		
40040	12 M	Select Protect		
i Acrea 2011 • Acrea Fragacta	(2) - + + + The PC + Mindows (2) + shows	and V	19161 (H	and design and the second s
4 Linux al Projecto		and (		71
409	Organiza - New Yolds:			E
ang 🖷 Opens in Dans Wordson	# Papitol * Norm	244 restfled Type	-lim	re .
the state bases	4 Suffaces 4 137	USTAGED A LEVEL WAR PLACE		0 C
Cit 🐾 Lang futter Cit 🛁 Move fatter	E Deliter	20271-2021 1-1201 Eine Pankas		
Per un la contra de la contra d	Crathere	(COMULTIAL SUB) File Failure		
54	Company			and
44 Ca. Mark all as Sport	de Defense			
Ne 🍢 Case by folker	Oscartent:     Oscartent			
Prog. International	a Surter			
A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY.	A faunates			192
1 PR.	a there page photos			
1.8ap	ANTCAL			
m · modiper	a Potest			4384
Afega E bustin	Patient			
a SD Line 🗰 Shu Falder.				withitio Emot
Compain Names of Contraction			1.04	Cardo -
Copylinger				

*Figure 21- Importing Folders from the desktop/fileshares* 

More information, hints and tips and how to's can be found in the Repstor affinity and Repstor assist user and configuration guides.